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31 March 2003 ZZE=F=HA=1-H

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The registered office of the Company is located at Clarendon House,
Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The principal place of
business of the Company is located at 6,/F, Sun Hung Kai Centre, 30
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal

activities:

*  foundation piling

o electrical and mechanical ("E&M”") engineering and building
construction

*  machinery leasing and frading

®  property investment and management

*  properly development

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
STATEMENTS OF STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICE

The following new and revised Hong Kong Statements of Standard
Accounting Practice ("SSAPs”) are effective for the first time for the current

year's financial statements:

e SSAP 1 (Revised) "Presentation of financial statements”

o  SSAP 11 (Revised)

" . . "
Foreign currency franslation

o  SSAP 15 (Revised) "Cash flow statements”

o SSAP 34 "Employee benefits"

These SSAPs prescribe new accounting measurement and disclosure
practices. The major effects on the Group’s accounting policies and on
the amounts disclosed in these financial statements of adopting these
SSAPs are summarised as follows:

SSAP 1 prescribes the basis for the presentation of financial statements
and sets out guidelines for their structure and minimum requirements for
the content thereof. The principal impact of the revision of this SSAP is
that a consolidated statement of changes in equity is now presented in
the financial statements in place of the consolidated statement of
recognised gains and losses that was previously required and in place of
the Group's reserves note.
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IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
STATEMENTS OF STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICE
(Cont'd)

SSAP 11 prescribes the basis for the translation of foreign currency
fransactions and financial statements. The principal impact of the revision
of this SSAP on the consolidated financial statements is that the profit and
loss accounts of overseas subsidiaries are now franslated info Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year,
whereas previously they were franslated at the exchange rates ruling at
the balance sheet date. The adoption of the revised SSAP 11 has had no
material effect on the financial stafements.

SSAP 15 prescribes the revised format for the cash flow statement. The
principal impact of the revision of this SSAP is that the consolidated cash
flow statement now presents cash flows under three headings, cash flows
from operating, investing and financing activities, rather than the five
headings previously required. In addition, cash flows from overseas
subsidiaries arising during the year are now franslated to Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions, or at an
approximation thereto, whereas previously they were translated at the
exchange rafes af the balance sheet date, and the definition of cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement has
been revised. Further details of these changes and the prior year
adjustments that have resulted from them are included in the accounting
policies for “Cash and cash equivalents” and “Foreign currencies” in
nofe 3 and in note 35 to the financial statements.

SSAP 34 prescribes the recognition and measurement criteria to apply fo
employee benefits, together with the required disclosures in respect
thereof. The adoption of this SSAP has resulted in the recognition of an
accrual for paid holiday carried forward by the Group's employees as at
the balance sheet date. The recognition of this accrual has resulted in a
prior year adjustment, further details of which are included under the
heading “Employee benefits” in note 3 and in note 27 to the financial
statements. In addition, disclosures are now required in respect of the
Company'’s share option scheme, as defailed in note 33 to the financial
statements. These share option scheme disclosures are similar fo the
Listing Rules disclosures previously included in the Report of the Directors,
which are now required to be included in the notes to the financial
statements as a consequence of the SSAP.

°
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
SSAPs, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the
periodic remeasurement of investment properties and certain equity
investments, as further explained below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2003.
The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
consolidated from or to their effective dates of acquisition or disposal,
respectively. All significant intercompany transactions and balances
within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders in the
results and net assets of the Company’s subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is a company whose financial and operating policies the
Company controls, directly and indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from ifs
activities.

The results of the subsidiaries are included in the Company’s profit and
loss account fo the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company'’s inferests in subsidiaries are stated atf cost less any impairment
losses.

2002/2003 %k @
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Associates

An associate is a company, not being a subsidiary, in which the Group
has a long term inferest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of
associates is included in the consolidated profit and loss account and
consolidated reserves, respectively. The Group's inferests in associates
are stated in the consolidated balance sheet at the Group's share of net
assets under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment
losses.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the excess
of the cost of the acquisition over the Group's share of the fair values of
the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired as at the date of
acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet as an asset and amortised on the sfraightline basis over its
estimated useful life of ten years.

On disposal of subsidiaries, the gain or loss on disposal is calculated by
reference to the net assets at the date of disposal, including the
affributable amount of goodwill which remains unamortised and any
relevant reserves, as appropriate.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed annually and written down
for impairment when it is considered necessary. A previously recognised
impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed unless the impairment loss
was caused by a specific external event of an exceptional nature that
was not expected to recur, and subsequent external events have occurred
which have reversed the effect of that event.

°
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Negative goodwill

Negative goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents
the excess of the Group's share of the fair values of the identifiable assets
and liabiliies acquired as at the date of acquisition, over the cost of the
acquisition.

To the extent that negative goodwill relates to expectations of future
losses and expenses that are identified in the acquisition plan and that
can be measured reliably, but which do not represent identifiable
liabilities as at the date of acquisition, that portion of negative goodwill is
recognised as income in the consolidated profit and loss account when
the future losses and expenses are recognised.

To the extent that negative goodwill does not relate to identifiable
expected future losses and expenses as at the date of acquisition,
negative goodwill is recognised in the consolidated profit and loss
account on a systematic basis over the remaining average useful life of
the acquired depreciable/amortisable assets. The amount of any
negative goodwill in excess of the fair values of the acquired non-
monefary assets is recognised as income immediately.

On disposal of subsidiaries, the gain or loss on disposal is calculated by
reference to the net assets at the date of disposal, including the
attributable amount of negative goodwill which has not been recognised
in the consolidated profit and loss account and any relevant reserves as
appropriate.

Impairment of assets

An assessment is made at each balance sheet date of whether there is
any indication of impairment of any asset, or whether there is any
indication that an impairment loss previously recognised for an asset in
prior years may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such
indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's
recoverable amount is calculated as the higher of the assef's value in use
or its net selling price.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is charged to the
profit and loss account in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, when the impairment loss is accounted for
in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Impairment of assets (Cont'd)

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to defermine the recoverable
amount of an asset, however not o an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation), had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is credited fo the profit and
loss account in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried af
a revalued amount, when the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued
assef.

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assefs, other than investment properties, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an
asset comprises its purchase price and any directly atfributable costs of
bringing the asset fo its working condition and location for its infended
use. Expenditure incurred affer fixed assets have been put info operation,
such as repairs and mainfenance, is normally charged to the profit and
loss account in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can
be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase
in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of
the fixed asset, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that
asset.

Depreciation is calculated on the straightline basis o write off the cost of
each asset over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

ME L REEFH leasehold land Over the terms of the leases
BF 2.5% Buildings 2.5%

BT T 10% - 33'5% Equipment and machinery 10%- 33'/:%

BRREE 20% Furniture and fixtures 20%

k-2 20% Motor vehicles 20%

it 10% Motor yacht 10%

HENXREKE 10% - 33'5%

REGRTRASLELAREETEE
EffzBadBE  DEREEL
HEMSRBFRERAECER -

@ Annual Report 2002/2003

10% - 33'/5%

leasehold improvements

The gain or loss on disposal or refirement of a fixed asset recognised in
the profit and loss account is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings in respect of
which construction work and development have been completed and
which are infended to be held on a long term basis for their investment
potential, any renfal income being negotiated af arm’s length. Such
properties are not depreciated and are stated at their open market values
on the basis of annual professional valuations performed at the end of
each financial year.

Changes in the values of investment properties are dealt with as
movements in the investment property revaluation reserve. If the total of
this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on a portfolio basis, the
excess of the deficit is charged to the profit and loss account. Any
subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to the profit and loss account fo
the extent of the deficit previously charged.

On the disposal of an investment property, the relevant portion of the
investment property revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous
valuations is released fo the profit and loss account.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at cost less any impairment
losses, which includes all development expenditure, borrowing cosfs and
other costs directly affributable to such properties.

Properties under development which have been pre-sold are stated at
cost plus affributable profits less any foreseeable losses, and deposits
and insfalments received.

When properties under development have been pre-sold, the total
estimated profit is apportioned over the entire period of construction to
reflect the progress of the development. On this basis, profit recognised
on the pre-sold portion of the properties is calculated by reference to the
proportion of construction costs incurred up fo the accounting date fo the
estimated fotal construction costs to completion, limited to the amount of
sales deposits and instalments received and with due allowance for
confingencies.

Properties under development which have either been pre-sold or which
are intended for sale and are expected to be completed within one year
from the balance sheet date are classified as current assets.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated in the balance sheet at the lower of
cost and nef realisable value. Cost includes the cost of land, capitalised
interest during the period of development and other direct costs
attributable to the development of the properties. Net realisable value is
defermined by reference fo the prevailing market prices on an individual
property basis, less all costs to completion, if applicable, and costs of
marketing and selling.

Other assets

Other assets represent club debentures, which are infended 1o be held for
long term purposes, and are sfated af cost less any impairment losses.

Leased assets

leases that fransfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets to the Group, other than legal fitle, are accounted for as finance
leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is
capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease payments and
recorded together with the obligation, excluding the inferest element, fo
reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases are included in fixed assets and depreciated over the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged to
the profit and loss account so as to provide a constant periodic rafe of
charge over the lease terms.

leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assefs leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited fo the profit and loss account on
the straightline basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the
lessee, rentals payable under the operating leases are charged fo the
profit and loss account on the straightline basis over the lease terms.

°
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, on the firstin, first-out basis,
and nef realisable value after making due o||owonce for any obsolete or
slow-moving items. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less all estimated costs o be incurred to completion and disposal.

Construction contracts

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amount and
appropriate amounts from variation orders, claims and incentive
payments. Contract costs incurred comprise direct materials, the costs of
subcontracting, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable
and fixed construction overheads.

Revenue from fixed price construction contracts is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference fo the
proportion of costs incurred to date fo the estimated fotal cost of the
relevant confract.

Revenue from cost plus construction contracts is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, by reference to the recoverable costs
incurred during the period plus the related fees earned, measured by the
proportion of costs incurred to date to the estimated total cost of the
relevant contract.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated
by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is treated as an
amount due from contract customers.

Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is treated as an
amount due fo contract customers.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly affributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e., assefs that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to gef ready for their infended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assefs is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised.

All other borrowing costs are charged as expenses in the period in which
they are incurred.

Short term investments

Short term investments are investments in equity securities held for trading
purposes and are sfated af their fair values on the basis of their quoted
market prices at the balance sheet date, on an individual investment
basis. The gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of a
security are credited or charged to the profit and loss account for the
period in which they arise.

Foreign currencies

Foreign currency fransactions are recorded at the applicable exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at balance sheet date are translated
at the applicable exchange rates ruling at that date. Exchange
differences are dealt with in the profit and loss account.

On consolidation, the financial statements of overseas subsidiaries are
franslated info Hong Kong dollars using the net investment method. The
profit and loss accounts of overseas subsidiaries are translated info Hong
Kong dollars af the weighted average exchange rates for the year, and
their balance sheets are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The resulting franslation
differences are included in the exchange fluctuation reserve.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the cash flows
of overseas subsidiaries are franslated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates ruling atf the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
franslated info Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

°
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31 March 2003 ZZE=F=HA=1-H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Foreign currencies (Cont'd)

Prior fo the adoption of the revised SSAPs 11 and 15 during the year, as
explained in note 2 to the financial statements, the profit and loss
accounts and the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries were translated info
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange ratfes ruling af the balance sheet
date. These changes have had no material effect on the financial
statements.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all significant
timing differences to the extent it is probable that the liability will
crystallise in the foreseeable future. A deferred tax asset is not recognised
until ifs realisation is assured beyond reasonable doubt.

Employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their
employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under certain
circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the balance sheet
date is permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the respective
employees in the following year. An accrual is made at the balance sheet
date for the expected future cost of such paid leave earned during the
year by the employees and carried forward.

Prior to the adoption of SSAP 34 during the year, as explained in note 2
to the financial statements, the Group did not accrue for paid annual
leave carried forward at the balance sheet date. This change in
accounting policy has resulted in a prior year adjustment due fo the initial
recognition of the accrual, further details of which are included in note
27 1o the financial statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Employee benefits (Cont'd)
Employment Ordinance long service payments

Certain of the Group's employees have completed the required number
of years of service to the Group in order to be eligible for long service
payments under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance in the event of
the termination of their employment. The Group is liable fo make such

BRERTAERGIMEZHTER payments in the event that such a termination of employment meets the
N EBERBAXNEERBRE circumstances specified in the Employment Ordinance.
4o
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@ Annual Report 2002/2003

A contingent liability is disclosed in respect of possible future long service
payments fo employees, as a number of current employees have
achieved the required number of years of service to the Group, to the
balance sheet date, in order to be eligible for long service payments
under the Employment Ordinance if their employment is ferminated in the
circumstances specified. A provision has not been recognised in respect
of such possible payments, as it is not considered probable that the
situation will result in a material future outflow of resources from the

Group.

Pension schemes

The Group operated a defined contribution provident fund (the “Fund”)
for certain of its employees, the assets of which are held separately from
those of the Group and are managed by an independent professional
fund manager. Contributions under the Fund were made based on a
percentage of the eligible employees’ basic salaries and were charged
to the profit and loss account as they became payable in accordance
with the rules of the scheme. The ongoing contributions fo the Fund were
terminated on 1 April 1999.

°
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Employee benefits (Cont'd)
Pension schemes (Cont'd)

Following the introduction of the Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), the Group has restructured its
refirement scheme arrangements to comply with the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The Group has secured Mandatory Provident
Fund exemption status for the above retirement benefits scheme and, in
addition, has participated in an approved defined contribution MPF
Scheme with effect from 1 December 2000. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the profit and loss account as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when confributed into the MPF Scheme.

Share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards fo eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group's operations. The financial impact of share
options granted under the share option scheme is not recorded in the
Company’s or the Group's balance sheet until such time as the options
are exercised, and no charge is recorded in the profit and loss account
or balance sheet for their cost. Upon the exercise of share options, the
resulting shares issued are recorded by the Company as additional share
capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the excess of the exercise
price per share over the nominal value of the shares is recorded by the
Company in the share premium account. Options which are cancelled
prior fo their exercise date, or which lapse, are deleted from the register
of outstanding options.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate
allocation of retained profits within the capital and reserves section of the
balance sheet, until they have been approved by the shareholders in a
general meeting. When these dividends have been approved by the
shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)
Dividends (Cont'd)

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably, on
the following bases:

(a) From foundation piling, E&M engineering, and building
construction contracts

On the percentage of complefion basis, as further explained in the
accounting policy for “Consfruction contracts” above;

(b)  From the sale of properties held for sale

On the exchange of legally binding sales contracts;

(c)  From the pre-sale of properties under development

On the exchange of legally binding sales contracts, provided that
the construction work has progressed to a stage where the ulimate
realisation of profit can be reasonably determined, and on the
basis sef out in “Properties under development” above;

(d)  From the machinery frading

When the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement fo the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the machines sold;

(e)  Rental income from property and machinery leasing

In the period in which the properties and machines are leased and
on the straightline basis over the lease ferms;

(fj  From the rendering of property management services
In the period in which such services are rendered;

°
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

(g) From the sale of listed investments
On the trade date;

(h)  Interestincome

On a time proportion basis taking into account the principal
outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable; and

()  Dividend income

When the shareholders’ right to receive payment has been
esfablished.

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control the other party, or exercise significant influence over
the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties are
also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or
common significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or
corporate entfities.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and short
term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

Prior to the adoption of the revised SSAP 15 during the year, as
explained in note 2 to the financial statements, cash equivalents in the
consolidated cash flow statement also included advances from banks
repayable within three months from the date of the advance, in addition
to bank overdrafts. This change in definition has resulted in a prior year
adjustment relating to trust receipt loans, further details of which are
included in note 35 to the financial statements.

For the purpose of the balance sheet, cash and bank balances comprise
cash on hand and af banks, including term deposits, which are not
restricted as fo use.
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3. FEGHBEBE (&) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

R Provisions
WE A XLEE (BIRETSHEE) A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
RER—ERECEEZEMHME constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that
AR RERKREEERSE BN BIE a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
BRZET RAREBCcBEEE provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
A SEfhE - RIS RER R - obligation.
BEREMEEANE - LGN ER When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
CERNEEBEFTREBREZE provision is the present value at the balance sheet date of the future
E2 AR 2B IE - BEE KRS expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
MzBREZRFTECBFABRRLZ increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage
BEKKR - of time is included in finance costs in the profit and loss account.

4. DEER SEGMENT INFORMATION

o
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@ Annual Report 2002/2003

Segment information is presented by way of two segment formats: (i) on
a primary segment reporting basis, by business segment; and (ii) on a
secondary segment reporting basis, by geographical segment.

The Group's operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according fo the nature of their operations and the products
and services they provide. Each of the Group's business segments
represents a strategic business unit that offers products and services
which are subject fo risks and returns that are different from those of the
other business segments. Summary details of the business segments are
as follows:

(a)  the foundation piling segment;
(b)  the E&M engineering and building consfruction segment;
(c]  the machinery leasing and frading segment;

(d)  the property invesiment and management segment: and

[

D

| the property development segment.

In determining the Group's geographical segments, revenues are
affributed fo the segments based on the location of the customers, and
assets are affributed fo the segments based on the location of the assets.

°
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

(b) Geographical segments

The following tables present revenue and certain asset and
expenditure information for the Group's geographical segments.

£E Group
&8 HEEMBLE 78 CE
Hong Kong Elsewhere in the PRC Unallocated Consolicated
SERSF CTTCF CRRSE CTTICF C9RfF CTTCF CRESF O CTEC
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
Tér TEr TEx TEr TEr  TEr  TEn  TEn
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
RN - Segment revenue:
HETHHEEE  Solestoertemal cusomers 1,013,481 1,338,595 211970 161484 = — 1,225451 1,500,079
HiHBER :  Othersegment information:
AREE Segment assefs 623476 760011 1115878 1,125,379 (21,179  (23,314) 1,718,175 1862976
BRRX Capital expenditure 7800 61074 9,358 4,554 838 3705 1799 69,333
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TURNOVER, REVENUE AND GAINS

Turnover represents the aggregate of the value of foundation piling,
electrical and mechanical engineering, and building construction
contracts certified by independent architects or quantity surveyors;
income derived from machinery trading and property management;
rental income from property and machinery leasing; and income from the
sale of properties held for sale and pre-sale of properties under
development, after eliminations of all significant intra-group fransactions.

An analysis of turnover and other revenue is as follows:

—BT=F ZTT=R
2003 2002
FET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
Turnover:
Foundation piling 630,639 1,016,791
E&M engineering and
building construction 361,311 294,521
Machinery leasing and frading 19,451 24,110
Property leasing and management 87,511 90,634
Property development 126,539 74,023
1,225,451 1,500,079
Other revenue and gains:
Interest income on bank deposits 1,620 1,261
Insurance claims 427 1,965
Exchange gains, nef — 166
Gain on disposal of fixed assets 7,694 —
Gain on disposal of an associate 6 —
Gain on sale of steel scrap 1,390 —

Refund of provident fund contributions 1,810 o=
Unrealised holding gains on short term
listed investments 7 48

Negative goodwill recognised

as income during the year 3,793 3,794
Others 4,044 2,388
20,791 9,622

°
‘H 1YSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED




3
—

REEEER 2 ER

AEERELEEBZEFIENGR,/
FtA) THIEBA -

BE
REERE
WAEEEE Y RE

e

T REFEERD
ZREHLMN K

RERBES

ZHE &

BIRA (BEESHE
— KiiFs) :
IE4kES
BIKE T8
HHFEB

ERERFE
HEETEEZER (BF)
BBELEHO

HERA

REMEZBEEBA
S

X

REMERZEERA
R

EHREZBRBEA

EALRRZ
MEHA

* L AEREABRRERAER B ESE
LRE CEREREGABRERZIE
g E A -

[ ]
Hode s pombema w A

6.

I 5 e Y ik
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2003 ZZE=F=HA=1-H

PROFIT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The Group's profit from operating activities is arrived at affer charging/

(crediting):
2= —TIT_F
2003 2002
FET F#ET
HK$'000 HK$'000
Goodwill:
Amortisation for the year* 1,031 1,032
Impairment arising during the year* — 4,550
1,031 5,582
Depreciation 80,926 Q4,349
Minimum lease payments under operating
leases of land and buildings 7,454 7,901
Rental of construction equipment 18,448 36,291
Auditors' remuneration 1,394 1,244
Staff costs (including directors’
remuneration - nofe 8):
Wages and salaries 153,545 192,237
Nef pension scheme
contributions 3,759 6,318
157,304 198,555
Exchange losses, nef 32 —
Loss/[gain] on disposal of fixed assets (7,694) 188
Rental income from operating leases
of machinery (12,019) (17,435)
Gross rental income from investment
properties (86,355) (89,773
Less: Outgoings 17,782 17,293
Net rental income from
investment properties (68,573) (72,480]
Dividend income from
listed investments (2) (11)
Inferest income on amount due from
a related party (70) (72)

The amortisation and impairment of goodwill recognised in the

consolidated profit and loss account for the year are included in "Other

operating expenses” on the face of the consolidated profit and loss

account.

2002/2003 &k @
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7.

FINANCE COSTS
58
GROUP

= S
2003 2002
FET FET
HK$000 HK$'000

Interest on bank loans and overdrafts
wholly repayable within five years 15,928 20,958
Interest on other loans 82 427
Interest on finance leases 1,005 1,688
Total inferest 17,015 23,073

less: Inferest capitalised in properties
under development [nofe 16) (4,535) [2,163)
12,480 20,910

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration, disclosed pursuant fo the Listing Rules and
Section 161 of the Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

58

GROUP
—ET=F —EE-F
2003 2002
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000

Fees:
Executive directors — —
Independent non-executive directors 240 240
Other emoluments of executive directors:
Basic salaries, housing allowances,
other allowances and

benefits in kind 5,042 7,045
Pension scheme contributions 48 48
5,330 7,333

°
‘H 1YSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2003 ZZE=F=HA=1-H

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Cont'd)

The number of directors whose remuneration fell within the bands set out
below is as follows:

EEAY
Number of directors

—EE=F —TT-F
2003 2002
Nil - HK$ 1,000,000 5] 4
HK$ 1,000,001 - HK$ 1,500,000 1 ]
HK$ 1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1 —
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 — 2
7 7

There was no arrangement under which any director waived or agreed
fo waive any remuneration during the year.

During the year, 40,000,000 share options were granted fo the
directors in respect of their services rendered to the Group, further details
of which are sef out in note 33 to the financial statements.

No value in respect of the share options granted during the year has
been charged fo the profit and loss account, or is otherwise included in
the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two (2002:
two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above.
Details of the remuneration of the remaining three (2002: three) non-
director, highest paid employees are as follows:

£8
GROUP
—ZTT=F —EEF
2003 2002
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
Basic salaries, housing allowances,
other allowances and
benefits in kind 3,648 4,551
Pension scheme contributions 36 36
3,684 4,587

2002/2003 &k @
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31'March 2003 —ZF=F=A=+—H

9. IfuGeHzEE (&) 9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Cont'd)
MeENFTIRELRSFHIFESR The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose remuneration
BAZMT fell within the following bands is as follows:

EEAH
Number of employees
—2T=F C—TT=F
2003 2002
£ —1,000,000/% 7T Nil - HK$ 1,000,000 1 =
1,000,001 7T — 1,500,000/ 7T HK$ 1,000,001 -HK$ 1,500,000 1 2
1,500,001 7T — 2,000,000/ 7T HK$ 1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1 =
2,000,001 T — 2,500,000/ 7T HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 = ]
3 3
RAFER  EFZUREHEES During the year, 13,000,000 share options were granted fo certain of
EERRENAEEMEHE 2 REM the three non-director, highest paid employees in respect of their services
JE14%13,000,00017 FE AR - EL 1B E, rendered to the Group, further details of which are included in the
R TS MR M £33 disclosures in note 33 fo the financial statements.
REAFEAMKLBREZER I No value in respect of the share options granted during the year has
ERNBRRANE - AR5 been charged fo the profit and loss account, or is otherwise included in
ALGEEHIESEEMS 2 & the above non-director, highest paid employees’ remuneration
B disclosures.

@ Annual Report 2002/2003 ‘H 1YSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
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11.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2003 ZZE=F=HA=1-H

TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16% [2002:
16%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the
year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere in the PRC have been
calculated at the applicable tax rates prevailing in the areas in which the
Group operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations and
practices in respect thereof.

58
GROUP
—EE=H —EE-F
2003 2002
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
Provision for fax in respect
of profit for the year:
PRC:

Hong Kong 4,322 2,550
Elsewhere 12,709 11,166

Underprovision/overprovision

in the prior year:
PRC:

Hong Kong (10) (210]
Elsewhere 419 (138)
17,440 13,368
Deferred tax (note 31) 1,125 3,365
18,565 16,733
Associates — —
18,565 16,733

NET PROFIT FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES ATTRIBUTABLE
TO SHAREHOLDERS

The net loss from ordinary activities affributable to shareholders for the
year ended 31 March 2003 dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company is HK$ 1,386,000 (2002: net profit of HK$5,196,000).

2002/2003 &k @
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12.

13.

DIVIDENDS
—2T=F CTTR
2003 2002
FHET T#T
HK$’000 HK$'000
Interim — Nil
(2002: 0.4 HK cent)
per ordinary share — 2,927
Proposed final — Nil
(2002: 0.4 HK cent)
per ordinary share — 2,927
— 5,854
EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic eamings per share is based on the net profit
attributable to shareholders for the year of HK$ 15,500,000 (2002:
HK$19,514,000 as restated), and the weighted average of
731,865,903 (2002: 731,865,903) ordinary shares in issue during

the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the net profit
contributable to shareholders for the year of HK$15,500,000. The
weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation is
the 731,865,903 ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in
the basic earings per share calculation and the weighted average of
38,939 ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no
consideration on the deemed exercise of all share options during the
year.

A diluted earnings per share amount for the year ended 31 March 2002
has not been disclosed as the share options outstanding during that year
had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share for that year.

°
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31 March 2003 ZZE=F=HA=1-H

14. BE&EE 14. FIXED ASSETS
58 Group

HEt  RBR AR
it =3 BE %E HENE
leasehold  Equipment  Fumiture hE il 58
lond ond ond and Mofor ~ Moor Leosehold Azt
buldings ~ machinery ~ fixtures  vehicles yacht improvements Totol
TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr TR
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000

RAE Cost
Eq] Atbeginning of year 19470 792931 43,031 14,294 6,143 47411 923,280
hE Additions = 7997 1,077 1,102 = 7,820 17,996
He Dircl — A0S (484 W3 WS (%) (68278
R=BE=E=R=1-H At 31 March 2003 19470 736874 42624 14,963 6098 54969 874998
2ithE Accumulated depreciation
RAlfE : and impairment:
i) Atbeginning of year 2853 525326 34522 10,633 5208 36137 614,679
AEENER Provided during the year 365 71487 2938 1,188 611 4337 80,926
il Disposals - [51,339)  [1,318) 4211 (35 [75)  (53,188]
R=BB=E=R=+-H At 31 March 2003 3218 545474 36142 11,400 S84 40399 642417
REFE Net book value:

R-22=£=A=1-H At 31 March 2003 16,252 191,400 6,482 3,563 314 14570 232,581
R-ZE_E-A=1-A At 31 March 2002 16617 267,605 8,509 3,601 935 11,274 308,601
AEERBEZHELHREF IR The Group's leasehold land and buildings are situated in Hong Kong

BTIIIENFHRES - and are held under the following lease terms:

A

Cost

FET

HK$'000

AR A Medium term leases 1,939

REIFA A long term leases 17,531
19,470
AEBUREE 2 RPHEE L RE The Group's long term leasehold land and buildings situated in Hong
FREAGEEETRERKEESR TR Kong and certain of the Group's equipment and machinery were
TRAREERMRITEE (K729 pledged to banks for banking facilities granted fo the Group [nofe 29).

[ ]
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~ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &'—
31 March 2003 =EE=4=F=+—H —
14. BEEE (&) 14. FIXED ASSETS (Cont'd)
AEBEEFEERBEFEBRE T The net book value of the fixed assets of the Group includes the following
NREBEBRAORAEZEE : assefs which are held under finance leases:
£E
GROUP

—22=F —TT-F

2003 2002

FHET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

B 25 Equipment and machinery 30,688 35,691
AEERFENREHO 2 RERE The gross amounts of the Group’s equipment and machinery held for use
SEREBRTELENT in operating leases and the related accumulated depreciation are as

follows:
£E
GROUP

—2T=F —TT-F

2003 2002

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

KN ME Cost 155,416 212,494
ZFE Accumulated depreciation (112,441) (135,319]
RETREEE Accumulated impairment losses (4,421) (10,187)

EEFE Net book value 38,554 66,988

@ Annual Report 2002/2003 1."1 TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2003 ZZE=F=HA=1-H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

3]

GROUP
= S
2003 2002
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
Balance at beginning of year 845,320 843,880
Surplus on revaluation 16,550 1,440
Balance at end of year 861,870 845,320

The Group's investment properties are held under the following lease
terms in the following geographical locations:

o
PRC
b Hitip & st
Hong Kong Elsewhere Total
TET TET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Medium term leases 5,870 — 5,870
long term leases 48,700 807,300 856,000
54,570 807,300 861,870

The Group's investment properties situated outside Hong Kong were
revalued on an open market, existing use basis, on 31 March 2003 by
independent professional property valuers, Debenham Tie Leung
International Property Advisers.

The Group's investment properties situated in Hong Kong were revalued
by Vigers Hong Kong Limited, a firm of independent professional
property valuers, on the same basis described above on 31 March
2003.

Cerfain of the Group's investment properties were pledged fo banks for
banking facilities granted to the Group [nofe 29).

2002/2003 &k @
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16. BEPYZE

FNER

AEBRE
HRERPYME
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BRERAHEEZNE (K23
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FRER
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Balance af beginning of year
Additions during the year
Transfer from deposit paid

for a property under

development [note 17)
Transfer fo properties held

for sale (note 23)
Interest capitalised (note /)
Add: Attributable profits

on pre-sale of properties

less: Progress insfalments received

Exchange realignment

Balance at end of year
Amount included in current assets

Amount included in non-current assets

- .
——_

16. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

E
GROUP

= S
2003 2002
FET FET
HK$000 HK$'000
55,215 52,935
56,719 32,718
104,380 —
(88,754) —
4,535 2,163
— 12,096
— (45,196)

— 499
132,095 55,215
— (55,215)
132,095 —

At the balance sheet date, the Group is in the process of obtaining the

realty title certificate in respect of the above properties under

development.

DEPOSIT PAID FOR A PROPERTY UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Balance af beginning of year
Additions during the year
Transfer fo properties

under development nofe 16)

Balance af end of year

£

GROUP
—¥P=F C-2T-F
2003 2002
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
71,807 —
32,573 71,807
(104,380) —
— 71,807

The deposit paid was in relation to the eviction cost of a property

development project in Shanghai, the PRC.

°
‘H 1YSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2003 ZZE=F=HA=1-H

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

NG|
COMPANY

= S

2003 2002

FET F#ET

HK$'000 HK$'000

Unlisted shares, at cost 4,120 4,120

Amounts due from subsidiaries 736,947 858,402
Portion due within one year,

classified as current assets (103,131) (210,990)

633,816 647,412

Amounts due fo subsidiaries (79,139) (95,419)
Portion due within one year,

classified as current liabilities 79,139 95,419

637,936 651,532

At the balance sheet date, the amounts due from and to subsidiaries are
unsecured, interestfree and have no fixed terms of repayment. At 31
March 2002, except for the current amounts due from and to
subsidiaries which were unsecured, bore inferest at rates ranging from
the Hong Kong dollar prime lending rafe (the “HK Dollar Prime Rate”) to
the HK Dollar Prime Rate plus 3% per annum and had no fixed terms of
repayment, all the other balances with the subsidiaries were unsecured
and interestfree.

The Company has undertaken not to demand repayment of the amount
due from a subsidiary, Tysan Foundation limited, of HK$80,000,000
(2002: HK$80,000,000), in order to let the subsidiary maintain the
required minimum working capital as stipulated by government
authorifies.

2002/2003 &k @
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— T = ——
31 March 2003 —ZT=%=/A=1+—H
18. B ARIER (&) 18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

ARARZEBHBARFBNOT :

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

BBITR
iz ava=1 gz VAN
i At i AR A itz
=Sk Nominal value of REBEDL
Place of issued and Percentage
incorporation/ fully paid/ of equity TEXK
=y registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and operations share capital the Company activities
—ET=F ZTT-HF
2003 2002

ZA (BE) ERERAT BE EFCLES 100 100 REEKR
Tysan (Hong Kong) Holdings Hong Kong 2B Investment
Limited Ordinary holding

HK$2
FAMETRRERAA B TRRA 100 100 M ESTHR
(KizF 1 X 4) Hong Kong 5,200,000 &7t Foundation
Tysan Foundation Limited B AR piling

[notes 1 and 4) 3,000,000 %7t

Ordinary

HK$5,200,000

Deferred

HK$3,000,000
FRARMEEERAA BB ERRA 100 100 WeRHE
(Ktat 4) Hong Kong 10,000 % 7T Machinery
Tysan Machinery Hire Limited BEIERR AR hiring

[note 4) 200,000 8 7T

Ordinary

HK$10,000

Deferred

HK$200,000
RAMETIR (FH) BiE &R A 100 100 1 B AT
BRAR (Kat1) Hong Kong 2T KIERER
Tysan Contractors (Hong Kong] Ordinary Foundation piling
Limited (nofe 1) HK$2 and project
management
RATHIRBERAR (K1) Bt &R A 100 100 Hh 85 B 1 B ER
Tysan Geotechnical Limited Hong Kong 28T Site investigation

[note 1) Ordinary

HK$2

@ Annual Report 2002/2003 ‘H 1YSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
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18. MBARER (&)

=L

Name

MBERAT (K1)
Lion Bright Limited
[note 1)

ZAEEBRAR
(Htat 1% 4)

Tysan Management Limited
(notes 1 and 4)

HEER AT
Sun Sparkle Limited

FANERRERAF

Tysan Investment limited

FAMEZERREBRAT
Tysan Property Development
& Investment Limited

FAREBRAA
Tysan Construction
Company Limited

[ ]
Hode s pombema w A

AR LS
fl,
EXRBH
Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations

B
Hong Kong

&R
Hong Kong

BE
Hong Kong

BB
Hong Kong

BB
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

I 5 e Y ik

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2003 ZZE=F=HA=1-H

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

EBTR
Br/
RN
Nominal value of
issued and

fully paid/
registered

share capital

TR A
2B
Ordinary
HK$2

TRRA
10087
BIERR AR
2B
Ordinary
HK$100
Deferred
HK$2

LN
2T
Ordinary
HK$2

ERRA
2B
Ordinary
HK$2

ERRA
2B
Ordinary
HK$2

gl
28T
Ordinary
HK$2

¥iN/NE|
FEfE 2
RET D
Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company
—TT=F ZTT-HF
2003 2002
100 100
100 100
100 _
100 100
100 100
100 100

Principal
activities

BEHEERER
Machinery hiring
and trading

RAEEHE
Office

management

bERBE
Corporate
financing

BEER
Investment

holding

BEER
Investment
holding

BEER
[nvestment
holding

2002/2003 &k @
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31 March 2003 —ZT=%=/A=1+—H

18. B AEE (&) 18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
BBITR
Ealig A= g/ ARE
i at i AR K i3l
SR Nominal value of REBEDL
Place of issued and Percentage
incorporation/ fully paid/ of equity TEXR
8 registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and operations share capital the Company activities
—BE=F —TT-F
2003 2002

RELEERAHA RBRX TR A 100 100 REZER
(Krat 1) 28 /&% 2ETT Investment
Eastern Star Holdings Limited British Virgin Ordinary holding

[note 1) Islands/ Us$2

Hong Kong

WRRERR AR (KE1) BE TR A 100 100 BENE
Faithmark Investments Limited Hong Kong 2ETT Property
(note 1) Ordinary holding

HK$2
Tremend Yield Limited BE LTS 100 100 MERE
(Krat 1) Hong Kong 2087 Property
[note 1) Ordinary investment

HK$20
RETERAR (A1) B gl 100 100 MERE
Joyful House Limited Hong Kong 2B Property
[note 1) Ordinary investment

HK$2
=HREFRRAA (A1) BiE gl 100 100 MERE
Trions Investment Limited Hong Kong 2B Property
[note 1) Ordinary investment

HK$2
Classic Wealth Limited (/7% 1) B gl 100 100 MERE
[note 1) Hong Kong 2B Property
Ordinary investment

HK$2
EEREBRRAT (K1) Bt &R A 100 100 X RS
Sure Faith Investment Limited Hong Kong 2B Property
[note 1) Ordinary holding

HK$2

@ Annual Report 2002/2003 ‘H 1YSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
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18. B L RAERE (&)

=L

Name

TREXARAR (ME1)
Top Class Properties Limited
[note 1)

Stonehill Limited
(Btat 1)

[note 1)

Principal Assefs Limited
(Kzt 1)

[note 1)

FWWBRERERAR (B 1)
Nethill International Limited
[note 1)

FANXEBRARAR (ML 1)

Tysan Property Management
Company Llimited [note 1)

BEFEHWEBRAR (K1)

Duncan Properties Limited
[note 1)

Impact Asia Limited
(Btat 1)

[note 1)

[ ]
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AR LS
fl,
EXRBH
Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations

B
Hong Kong

RERY
28/ &%
British Virgin

Islands/
Hong Kong

KBRX
28/ EE
British Virgin

Islands/
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

&R
Hong Kong

BB
Hong Kong

RBRY
28 /%
Brifish Virgin

Islands,/
Hong Kong
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2003 ZZE=F=HA=1-H

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

BBITR
BR/
ot i AR A

Nominal value of

EAYNG|
itz
REBEDL
Percentage
of equity
attributable to

the Company
—EE=F

issued and
fully paid/
registered
share capital

= —EE-F

2003

TR A
2B
Ordinary
HK$2

100

LI
1%
Ordinary
US$1

100

LN
1%
Ordinary
US$1

100

LN
2B
Ordinary
HK$2

100

LN
2T
Ordinary
HK$2

100

LI
28T
Ordinary
HK$2

100

1E7T
Ordinary
US$T

100

2002

100

Principal
activities

MERE
Property
investment

BEER
[nvestment

holding

HEER
[nvestment

holding

12 (B S AR 7
Provision of
consultancy

services

NMEER
Property
management

HEER
Investment

holding

HEER
Investment
holding

2002/2003 &k @
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31 March 2003 —ZT=%=/A=1+—H

18. MME A RER (&) 18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
BBITR
Ealig A= #r/ ARE
i at i AR K i3l
=Sk Nominal value of REBEDL
Place of issued and Percentage
incorporation/ fully paid/ of equity TEXR
8 registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and operations share capital the Company activities
—BE=F —TT-F
2003 2002
World-link Pacific Limited RBRR TR A 100 100 REZER
(Krat 1) 28 /&% 1E7T Investment
(note 1) British Virgin Ordinary holding
Islands/ US$1
Hong Kong
Redcastle Worldwide Limited RBRX EF LTS 100 100 REZER
(Kfat 1) 28 /&% 17T Investment
(note 1) British Virgin Ordinary holding
Islands/ US$1
Hong Kong
Fundamental Pacific Limited HBRY &R A 100 100 REZER
(Kfat 1) 28 /&% 17T Investment
[note 1) Brifish Virgin Ordinary holding
Islands/ US$1
Hong Kong
Portfolio Developments REBER LR A 100 100 REEKR
Limited EE /B E Investment
(Btat 1) British Virgin Ordinary holding
[note 1) Islands,/ US$1
Hong Kong
Fastbridge Developments REER TR A 100 100 REEKR
limited 28 /&% = Investment
(Btat 1) British Virgin Ordinary holding
[note 1) Islands,/ US$1
Hong Kong
Dragonhill Limited BB LR A 100 100 REEKR
(Bt 1) Hong Kong 2T Investment
(note 1) Ordinary holding
HK$2

@ Annual Report 2002/2003 ‘H 1YSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
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18. B L RAERE (&)

=L

Name

BEARLE (1)
Fortunate Win Limited
[note 1)

Consco Holdings Limited
(Hiax 1)

[note 1)

REREERAR
(Hzt 1)

Tianjin Development
Company Limited
[note 1)

FAIRREERRA
(KzE 1)

Tysan Engineering Company
Limited (note 1)

ZATR (F8) BRAT
(KizE 1)
Tysan Engineering (HK)
Company Limited (nofe 1)

ZABHBERRE (K1)
Tysan Trading Company
Limited (nofe 1)

FTEEMITIZERAF
(Kt 1)

Proficiency Equipment Limited
[note 1)

[ )
H % 5 5w 45 B4 o

iz va=1
atfi,/
EXRBH
Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations

B
Hong Kong

5
Hong Kong

&R
Hong Kong

BB
Hong Kong

BB
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

BiE
Hong Kong

18.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2003 ZZE=F=HA=1-H

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

BEBITR
Br/

At AR A
Nominal value of
issued and

fully paid/
registered

share capital

TR A
2B
Ordinary
HK$2

TRRA
100,000 & 7T
Ordinary
HK$ 100,000

il
100,000 & 7T
Ordinary
HK$ 100,000

ERRA
10,000 & 7T
Ordinary
HK$10,000

ERRA
4,100,000 %t
Ordinary
HK$4,100,000

LN
10078 7T
Ordinary
HK$100

AR AR
6,750,000 8 7T
Ordinary
HK$6,750,000

¥iN/NE|
FEfh 2
RET D
Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company
—EE-F —TTC-F
2003 2002
100 100
80 80
72 79
70 70
70 70
60 100
60 60

Principal
activities

EERE
Project
financing

g R
Investment

holding

BEER
[nvestment
holding

BEER
[nvestment

holding

RHEER
T AR 75
Provision of
electrical and
mechanical

services

—RESH
General
frading

HaEEER
Eg

Machinery

hiring and frading

2002/2003 %k @
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18. B A RERE (&)

iz A=

atft,/

EE 3

Place of

incorporation/

=t

Name

registration
and operations

KRETRZEBRRR (K1) BB

Proficiency Engineering Limited Hong Kong
[note 1)

FEEEEMERELE REAR
BRRA (Kt 1k2) HEE

Shanghai Duncan Property People’s
Development Company Limited Republic
(notes T and 2) of China

ZEERBERAT (K 1k2) BE

China Garden Infernational Hong Kong
Limited (notes 1 and 2)

BEEMEER (L&) ARAQA REAR
(BfaF1k2) H A

Duncan Property Management People’s
(Shanghai) Company Limited Republic
(notes T and 2) of China

LBEREBEREmERE REAR
REFRATA HAMEH
(HfaF1k2) People’s

Shanghai China Garden Republic
International Real Estate of China
Development & Management
Company Limited (nofes 1 and 2)

Allbright Investments Limited RERER
(Ktat 1) 28 /5%
(note 1) British Virgin

Islands,/
Hong Kong

@ Annual Report 2002/2003

EBTR
Br/

At AR A
Nominal value of
issued and

fully paid/
registered

share capital

gL
2T
Ordinary
HK$2

gl
5,000,000 %7t
Ordinary
US$5,000,000

ERELEN
100 # 7T
Ordinary
HK$100

EREEIEN
500,000 &7t
Ordinary
US$500,000

LN
5,000,000 %7t
Ordinary
US$5,000,000

100 %7T
Ordinary
Us$100

s

. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

ZAYNS|
itz
BREBDL
Percentage
of equity TEXH
attributable to Principal
the Company activities
—ET=F ZTT-HF
2003 2002
60 60 Rt
TITRRS
Provision of
engineering
services
60 60 MEER
Property
development
60 60 REER
Investment
holding
60 60 MEEE
Property
management
60 60 MERE
Property
investment
60 60 RERRK
Investment
holding

°
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31 March 2003 ZZE=F=HA=1-H

18. B AEE (&) 18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
BEBITR
AR LS g/ ZAYNE|
i At AR A itz
EXRBH Nominal value of REBEDL
Place of issued and Percentage
incorporation/ fully paid/ of equity TEXH
= registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and operations share capital the Company activities
—BE=F —TT-F
2003 2002
ARBREBRRAT (Hat1) BE TR A 60 60 REZER
Red Shine Investment Limited Hong Kong 2B Investment
[note 1) Ordinary holding
HK$2
lronwood Pacific Limited RERY gl 60 60 REZEK
(Ktat 1) 28 /&% 100% 7T Investment
[note 1) British Virgin Ordinary holding
Islands,/ us$100
Hong Kong
BRREBRRT (K1) BE &R A 60 60 MERE
Hiat Investment Limited Hong Kong 2B Property
(note 1) Ordinary investment
HK$2
Federated Resources Limited RBRY ERRA 60 60 REZER
(Ktat 1) 28 /B8 100%& 7T Investment
[note 1) British Virgin Ordinary holding
Islands/ US$100
Hong Kong
ENBARRR (BT 1) BE &R A 60 60 REZER
Carriway Limited Hong Kong 28T Investment
[note 1) Ordinary holding
HK$2
Beneficial Enterprises Limited REBER LR A 60 60 REZER
(Ktat 1) 28 /B8 100% 7T Investment
[note 1) British Virgin Ordinary holding
Islands,/ US$100
Hong Kong
BRITARRA (MiE1) BiE TR A 60 60 REZER
Fund House limited Hong Kong 2B Investment
[note 1) Ordinary holding
HK$2

Hoemameemanaa 2002,/2003 %48 @
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s

18. MME A RER (&) 18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
BBITR
Ealig A= g/ ARE
i EER I FEfh 2
SR Nominal value of REBEDL
Place of issued and Percentage
incorporation/ fully paid/ of equity TEXHB
=L registration registered attributable to Principal

Name and operations share capital the Company activities

—EF=F C—TT-F
2003 2002

TEREESEME REAR TR A 60 60 MEER
HELZRRQTA HFE 10,000,000 % T Property
(HfaF 1k2) People’s Ordinary development

Shanghai Changning Duncan Republic ~ US$10,000,000
Property Development Company of China
Limited (notes 1 and 2)

Consco Investment Company BB Rl 58.25 58.25 REZEKR
Limited Hong Kong 100,000 & 7T Investment
(Kfat 1) Ordinary holding
fnote 1) HK$100,000

LB ERES R AR REAR gl 54 54 MEER
REFRAR (MF1Xk2) HAE AR Property

Shanghai Putuo Duncan People's 40,000,000 7t development
Property Development Republic Ordinary
Company Limited of China  RMB40,000,000
[notes 1 and 2)

FAREIRARLA BE TR A 50 50 RHETR

(BfaF 1k 3) Hong Kong 10,200,000 &7t BETR

Tysan Building Construction Ordinary Provision of
Company Limited HK$10,200,000 building and
[notes 1 and 3) construction

works

REBRBEAEERAF REAR gl 46.6 46.6 MERE
(HfaF1 - 2k3) Eayil 10,000,000 £ 7T Property

Tianijin Infernational Building People's Ordinary investment
Company Limited Republic ~ US$10,000,000
(notes 1, 2 and 3) of China

@ Annual Report 2002/2003
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18. B RERE (&
Fitat -
1. BBWBRARE -
2. UHBRKEFEIEHAEE -

3. ARFARERZLAZEERESR
FEHBFERE  HRERRAK
AR ZMBRA -

4. BEBRHEEBRKES (REBAAA
I S A
1,000,000,0007%8 7T 2 (A1 B BR &F fE 32
BESEZERRE ZETEERTR
BB MEERBRERANE LE
Z - MARBEERERRNERERE
ZEMAR (ZERDZEHBRAR
Oh - EZARZ EBRIEE ANER
FEREAHRSRTARE S IKHK
1,000,000,000,0008 7T) °

ERANZARAMBLRARIRESRR
RUAEBZAFEEEREATE
IBRABDFEEZMNBRR - &
ERA - FIAEMHBLR S BA
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31 March 2003 ZZZ=%=/A=+—H

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Notes:
1. Held through subsidiaries.

2. Not audited by Emst & Young.

3. The Company has the power fo cast the majority of votes at meetings of the
board of directors of these entities and therefore they are regarded as
subsidiaries of the Company.

4. The deferred shares carry no rights to dividends [other than a fixed non-
cumulative dividend af the rate of 5% per annum for any financial year
during which the net profit of the relevant company available for dividends
exceeds HK$1,000,000,000), no rights to vote at general meetings, no
rights fo receive any surplus on a return of capital on a winding-up (other
than the amount paid up on such shares, provided that the holders of the
ordinary shares of that company have been distributed in such a winding-
up of a sum of HK$1,000,000,000,000 in respect of each ordinary
share).

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

2002/2003 &k @
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FriE B EFE

B D RIRR

EUWHENBREAEER 28K
£ [E TE 2 U o

TBHERRZFRBOT

EEEE
2% Business
Name structure
NEEZEEFRADF NG

Turbo Dragon Investment Limited ~ Corporate

FRIHEESRAFEZELEES
RSN A EE SR AEE T h
ERNRAABNERZZAEERE R
A EBEZRA FHIEMBERTE
SIBATBRITE °

@ Annual Report 2002/2003

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

£m
GROUP

—EE=F —ETF

2003 2002

FET FET

HK$000 HK$'000
Share of net liabilities — (34)
Amounts due from associates 229 322
229 288

The amounts due from associates are unsecured, interestfree and have
no fixed ferms of repayment.

Particulars of the principal associate are as follows:

AR AL rEERGZ
S, BEEEIL
EEME Percentage
Place of of ownership
incorporation/ interest TEER
registration attributable Principal
and operations to the Group activities
—2T=F —TTH
2003 2002
N 50 50 RAEZRK
Hong Kong Investment

holding

The above table lists the associate of the Group which, in the opinion of
the directors, principally affected the Group's share of results of the
associates or formed a substantial portion of the Group's interests in
associates. To give details of other associates would, in the opinion of
the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

°
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20. HEREFHSE 20. GOODWILL AND NEGATIVE GOODWILL
HREBREBLREEEEREIER The amounts of goodwill and negative goodwill capitalised as an asset
BE JEREEEABRAER or recognised in the consolidated balance sheet, arising from the
BERAEHEBHENT acquisition of subsidiaries, are as follows:

£E
GROUP
EBE
Gk Negative
Goodwill goodwill
FE T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
AE Cost:
FORR=-ZE=F At beginning of year and
=B=+-—H 31 March 2003 22,554 (92,953)
Rt (BRBRA) ¢ Accumulated amortisation,/
[recognition as incomel:
F41)) At beginning of year 19,783 (57,233)
PANFEE S Amortisation provided/
(R RUAN) (recognised as income)
during the year 1,031 (3,793)
R-ZBE=F=A=1+—-H At 31 March 2003 20,814 (61,026)
FREFE Net book value:
R-EE=F=A=+—H At 31 March 2003 1,740 (31,927)
RZEZE-_F=A=+—H At 31 March 2002 2,771 (35,720)
21. EHARE 21. SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
£H
GROUP
—ET=F C—TT-F
2003 2002
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
REE LT Z2RHEKE Listed equity investments in
Bmi{E Hong Kong, at market value 174 167

[ ]
Hoemameemanaa 2002,/2003 %48 @
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22. 78

Rt
THREMA

REER  YEGERUSRFEAN
B o

23. HAHEEZWE

F1
NEFEERKIADIEER

BRRRTYE (Hat16)

FRHEZNE
B3 BE

FR

AKRBERAHRBEZMEUNTFER
NREIBAORS -

@ Annual Report 2002/2003

23.

22. INVENTORIES

4]

GROUP
= S
2003 2002
FET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
Raw materials 709 1,136
Spare parts and other accessories 9,741 9,222
10,450 10,358

There were no inventories carried at net realisable value at the balance

sheet date.
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
£8
GROUP
—2T=F CTTR
2003 2002
FHET T#T
HK$’000 HK$'000
At beginning of year 27,546 41,912
Underprovision of development
costs in prior years 1,369 1,386
Transfer from properties under
development (nofe 16) 88,754 —
Properties sold during the year (95,140) [16,148)
Exchange realignment — 396
At end of year 22,529 27,546

The Group's properties held for sale are located in the PRC and are held
under long term leases.

°
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EFEBANIRZRK

REFPEBANIR IR

FEEZRHRAMBERFRAH
ERREFREERDBR

W B EUGE T BR K

RZZTE=F=FA=+—H " iTARE
WESERANERERFHEZERBA
MTIRZRESHET,019,000%8 T
(ZZZT 4 : 87,252,000/ 7T) (Kat
26) °

25. —BEAEALTZRXK
—ZBBEATZRFEBRENT ¢

i

BT R

BETEEREARRZHERRRL
ERHTREARAR c B

TR AREG T EERRYL EEA
MBS RETREBMNERMIEFE
AE AEETEEAR -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2003 ZZE=F=HA=1-H

24. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

25.

58
GROUP
= S
2003 2002
FET F#ET
HK$'000 HK$'000
Amounts due from customers
for contract works 79,415 31,290
Amounts due fo customers
for contract works (16,087) (38,274)
63,328 (6,984)
Conlract costs incurred plus
recognised profits less
recognised losses to dafe 2,251,506 1,836,884
less: Progress billings received
and receivable (2,188,178)  (1,843,868)
63,328 (6,984)

At 31 March 2003, refentions held by customers for contract works

included in trade receivables amounted to approximately
HK$71,019,000 (2002: HK$87,252,000 (note 26).

AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED PARTY

Particulars of the amount due from a related party are disclosed as

follows:
=
GROUP
—EZ=F —TT-F
Name 2003 2002
FETT FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
Mr. KWAN Kit Yuen 908 838

Mr. Kwan Kit Yuen has a beneficial interest in Proficiency Equipment
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company.

The above balance with Mr. Kwan Kit Yuen is unsecured, bears inferest
at the HK Dollar Prime Rate plus 3% per annum and has no fixed terms of
repayment.

2002/2003 &k @
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26. EWE 3R 26. TRADE RECEIVABLES
£H
GROUP
—BF=F ZTT=R
2003 2002
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
90H A Within 90 days 165,240 265,673
91HE180H 91 to 180 days 3,347 9,174
181HZ360H 181 to 360 days 2,203 526
3608 A £ Over 360 days 304 572
171,094 275,945
EWRE S (f17F24) Retention receivables (note 24) 71,019 87,252
242,113 363,197
AEERBAMITRREFEEER The Group has established credit policies that follow local industry
R-BTEHEFPZFH—REEH standards. The average normal credit periods offered to frade customers
ROHA - EAKEREEL TSR are within 90 days, and are subject to periodic review by management.
At e
27. BENEZRAKREFHRIE 27. TRADE PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
£E YN
GROUP COMPANY
—EF=F C—TT-HF -TE=F ZTT=H
2003 2002 2003 2002
FET TET FET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
(7))
(Restated)
30BN Within 30 days 70,605 80,792 = =
31HZE90H 31 10 90 days 11,791 16,643 — —
91H £180H 91 to 180 days 2,135 843 = =
1808 LA £ Over 180 days 1,314 488 — —
85,845 98,766 = =
ERRES Retention payables 27,390 23,355 — —
FEEt 1A Accruals 50,950 67,888 3,201 3,181
164,185 190,009 3,201 3,181

@ Annual Report 2002/2003 ‘H 1YSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
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27.

28.

BNEZRARE A (&)

BB B RRME 2R EIMEER
MIFrEE  AFEERANEG T EBHER
F34% o At - BEREEAESR
REEMREZAFHFRBHRRK
RIIBEFHE  BEREEHNK
KERR AT LAART R R FE R o

ZEHBR EBEEHAEER T
E=FER-_FTT_F=A=1+—H#
BERIAR RS RIE 2 &85 5l
5t A 4,349,000/ 7T 2 5,095,000/ 7T °
Alt - BEZTT=FR-_FTT_F
A=t BUEERRELGER
F 2 B # 0 746,000 T K B
726,000 MAZEE_FR_-ZF
Z—FNA—AZERERBEFHF
% 5,095,0007% 7T K& 4,369,000/ 7T -

Mt EERRER

RITEX Bank overdrafts

RITERKEM  Current portion of bank loans
&R ZBEIE S and other borrowings
(Kz£29) (note 29)

JEfTREMAI 2 Current portion of finance
ENER &R 2 lease payables
(Kfz£30) (note 30)

[ )
H % 5 5w 45 B4 o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2003 ZZE=F=HA=1-H

27. TRADE PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (Contd)

SSAP 34 was adopted during the year, as explained in note 2 and under
the heading “Employee benefits” in note 3 to the financial statements. As
a result, an accrual is now made at the balance sheet date for the
expected future cost of paid annual leave earned during the year by
employees, which remains untaken by the employees af the balance
sheet date and is permitted to be carried forward and ufilised in the
following year.

This change in accounting policy has resulted in HK$4,349,000 and
HK$5,095,000 being included in the balance of the Group's accruals
in respect of the paid leave carried forward as at 31 March 2003 and
2002, respectively. As a consequence, the consolidated net profits
affributable to shareholders for the years ended 31 March 2003 and
2002 have been increased by HK$746,000 and decreased by
HK$726,000, respectively, and consolidated retained profits at 1 April
2002 and 2001 have been reduced by HK$5,095,000 and
HK$4,369,000, respectively, as detailed in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity.

28. INTEREST-BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS

£8 N

GROUP COMPANY
—EE=F —TT-F CZET=F —TIT-F
2003 2002 2003 2002
FET FHE T FET FHE T
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
318 19,240 — 877
143,241 290,371 — 20,000
143,559 309,611 — 20,877
8,551 9,333 — —
152,110 318,944 — 20,877

2002/2003 %k @
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29. MERITERKREMER

EAR
RITEX
BITER
ERBRIBEER
HER

I -
RITES
RITEHR
ERRBER
BB

RITERK
H f‘@ 1% AR

@ﬂTwwﬁm%ﬁz
ROATERREMEH -

R—FARIRB A

F_F

E=EZERF
(BHEEEME)

AR—ENEE
PEAERBEE
22810 (H#E28)

=3 k)
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29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND OTHER

BORROWINGS
£8 NG
GROUP COMPANY
R _—TT_F CZEB=ZF _TT_F
2003 2002 2003 2002
FET FAET FET FET
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
Unsecured:
Bank overdrafts 318 2,331 — 838
Bank loans 155,000 143,994 — 00,000
Trust receipt loans = 28,950 = —
Other loans — 2,033 — —
155,318 177,308 — 00,838
Secured:
Bank overdrafts — 16,909 — 39
Bank loans 129,713 201,174 — —
Trust receipt loans — 13,962 — -
Mortgage loans 32,500 36,500 — -
162,213 268,545 — 39
Total bank loans and
other borrowings 317,531 445,853 — 100,877
Bank loans and
other borrowings
are repayable:
Within one year
or on demand 143,559 309,611 — 20,877
In the second year 50,508 44,620 — 30,000
In the third to fifth
years, inclusive 123,464 Q1,622 — 50,000
317,531 445,853 — 100,877
Portion due within one
year, classified as
current liabilities
[note 28) (143,559) (309,611) — [20,877)
Long term portion 173,972 136,242 = 80,000

‘H 1YSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
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29. ERITERKEMER (&)

) AEBEZRITER

BEIRASE

ERNEERACRAFERRD

255,946,000/ 7T (=

TE—F

— = =

330,388,000 L) 2 & THE +
WREF REYERRERE

sEEA &

(i) EFHMEFHELR  F213

B - BEREEEK

30. ERRERY

30.

AEERKLERAEEXBHERET
B  ZEFHNBRA/RERN &
THEAFENT—EMFZMH -

REER  EREHEATHERRER

ANFTRBRERENT

AR T A HEER 2508 -

—ER

E_F

F-EZFEREF
(RIEEEMEF)

29.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2003 ZZE=F=HA=1-H

INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (Cont'd)

(il The Group's bank loan facilities were secured by certain of the
Group’s leasehold land and buildings, investment properties and
equipment and machinery with an aggregate net book value of
approximately HK$255,946,000 (2002: HK$330,388,000) af
the balance sheet date; and

(il The other loans in the prior year were unsecured, bore interest at
13% per annum and had no fixed terms of repayment.

FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

The Group leases certain of its plant and machinery for its machinery
hiring business. These leases are classified as finance leases and have
remaining lease terms ranging from one to two years.

At the balance sheet date, the fotal future minimum lease payments under
finance leases and their present values were as follows:

RERE
HONZRERE

RRBERN

BERNENFERFR

PEARSEE TN
(H17£28)

=3k

[ )
H % 5 5w 45 B4 o

5N 4y BRIKALN RIEHL
EESEOET BH T NREE NHBE
Minimum Minimum Present value Present value
lease lease of minimum of minimum
Group payments payments  lease payments  lease payments
“ER=f _"TT-F TR _TT_F
2003 2002 2003 2002
FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Amounts payable:
Within one year 9,053 10,331 8,551 9,333
In the second year 6,247 9,355 6,108 8,821
In the third fo
fifth years, inclusive — 6,465 — 6,313
Total minimum finance
lease payments 15,300 26,151 14,659 24,467
Future finance charges (641) (1,684)
Total net finance
lease payables 14,659 24,467
Portion classified as current
liabilities (note 28) (8,551) (9,333)
Long term portion 6,108 15,134
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31. IELERKIE 31. DEFERRED TAX
£H
GROUP
—BF=F ZTT=R
2003 2002
FET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETF Balance at beginning of year 12,000 8,635
REZTAHE Charge for the year
(B2451,125,000%8 7L 2 T & 5 16% (including the effect of the
BR1T5% 2 E change in tax rate from 16% to
(ZF2Z2-F: F)) (Wt10) 17.5% of HK$ 1,125,000
(2002: Nil)) (note 10) 1,125 3,365
FIRETT Balance at end of year 13,125 12,000
BEEREEFT 2 HANERERE The deferred tax provision relates wholly to accelerated capital
RZBRERz AEEE T EERG allowances obtained on the Group's fixed assets to the extent that a
ZIMEREARRTE liability is expected to crystallise in the foreseeable future.
RGEMBRRANTERR 2 AEE The principal components of the Group's net deferred tax assets not
BERAEEFEL T ZAKIBNH D recognised in the consolidated financial statements are analysed below:
T
—2F=F C—TT=F
2003 2002
FHET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
IERFTE R Accelerated depreciation allowances 6,324 17,620
MG ER Tax losses (38,593) (35,467)
(32,269) (17,847)
AEEVERRENEZERELE Deferred tax has not been provided on the revaluation of the Group's
EREEE AREFARLEZSE investment properties as, in the opinion of the directors, the disposal of
MESASEEBRBEE - WERE such properties would not result in a tax liability. No provision has been
B A F DA SM E FETAR L 2 A A made for taxes which would arise on the remittance to Hong Kong of
RREGENEREFTBMAIRLIEZ refained profits of companies registered outside Hong Kong in the PRC as
MIBELEE  ARYPHEFZER it is not anticipated that these amounts will be remitted in the near future.
ERERBRER -
ARRIVEREEBZEREBRELT The Company has no significant pofential deferred tax liabilities for which

HBEE - provision has not been made.
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32.

S

S 5 Ak A A
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2003 ZZE=F=HA=1-H

SHARE CAPITAL
Shares
NG|
COMPANY
—TL=f CZTT=F
2003 2002
FAET FE T
HK$000 HK$'000
Authorised:
2,000,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid:
731,865,903 ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each 73,186 73,186

There were no movements in the Company's authorised or issued capital
during the current year and prior year.

Share options

Details of the Company's share option scheme and the share options
issued under the scheme are included in note 33 to the financial
stafements below.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

SSAP 34 was adopted during the year, as explained in note 2 and under
the heading “Employee benefits” in note 3 to the financial statements. As
a result, the following detailed disclosures relating to the Company'’s
share option scheme are now included in the notes to the financial
statements. In the prior year, these disclosures were included in the Report
of the Directors, as their disclosure is also a requirement of the Listing
Rules.

On 27 September 2000, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(the “Old Scheme"|, for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants who contributed to the success of the Group's
operations. The Old Scheme was terminated and replaced by a new
share option scheme at the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 28 August 2002 (the “New Scheme"]. Upon termination of the Old
Scheme, no further options can be granted thereunder but in all other
respects, the provisions of the Old Scheme shall remain in force and any
opfions granted prior fo such termination shall continue to be valid and
exercisable in accordance therewith.
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s
33. BRESE (&)
BROEFBBEEFEARTFERLE

WATTEBRERSRHE A £TE
BEARAEMREEETRNZ

33. SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (Cont'd)

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitted to
be granted under the Old Scheme and the New Scheme must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any

10% °

ADRBEETEZHBAT

time.

A summary of the share option schemes of the Company is as follows:

gital et 8l
Old Scheme New Scheme
B RASBERNEEELERZAERSZ2 REBSERZEEREBADABERE
Purpose BERHZRRME - HHRERR  ARBERESZEELE IR
To provide incentives and rewards to  BRIMER 2 AN AR EBKHKR -
eligible participants who contribute to the  To encourage eligible participants to perform
success of the Group's operations. their best in achieving the goals of the
Company while at the same time allow them to
share the fruits of the Company's business
achieved through their effort and contribution.
S mE ARAIREEAHBEARIZ2BRE AARSHELIANBRRAZITHALE - EE
Participants (BEHTES) - FEZ(BRATEERIFNTESR) -

A FETERBRABR
RERBRBBPEDE
TRAZEDH

Total number of ordinary
shares available for issue
and the percentage of the
issued share capifal that it
represents as af the date
of the annual report

BHR2EE I RERE
Maximum entitlement of
each participant

Full-ime employees (including executive
directors) of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

15,600,000fk EBR K EBTRAZ
2.13% °
15,600,000 ordinary shares and 2.13%

of the issued share capital.

TEBAREAERLZBREFR
LR A2 25% °

Shall not exceed 25% of the fotal number of
ordinary shares in respect of the options
that may be granted in accordance with
the scheme.

@ Annual Report 2002/2003

Executives or employees or direcfors (including
both executive directors and non-executive
directors) of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

73,186,5908% & @A (B E K HER KM
3 AR 1718 2 53,000,0008% & 178 A% B8 AR HE) T2
B #{TAA210.00% °

73,186,590 ordinary shares (including
options for 53,000,000 ordinary shares that
have been granted but not yef lapsed or
exercised) and 10.00% of the issued share
capital.

MERBMEMN2ME B PR A AR #ITR
KZ1%

Shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital
of the Company in any 12-month period.

°
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33. SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (Cont'd)

EqrEl
Old Scheme

#ardl

New Scheme

RIEBRE L ARBEE
%2 HiR

Period within which the
securities must be taken
up under an opfion

RATERT LA R A AR
2 xEHR
Minimum period for
which an option must be
held before it can be
exercised

TR 4R 5 FE A5 3R IR
Amount payable on
acceptance

BETEECEE
Basis of determining the
exercise price

ArElZ BT
The remaining life of the
scheme

e
H % 5 5w 45 B4 o

HEFEE RNETHREHRRARLER
HERER AR NER T F M (FiHat
BzEmB SRR EE)RIE -
Determined by the directors, and
commences after a certain vesting period
and ends on a date which is not later than
ten years from the date of grant of the share
options or the expiry dafe of the scheme, if
earlier.

HEEETMEREHEEZNRMGS -
To be determined by the directors and
included in the relevant offer letters.

/ﬁ\i\o
Nil.

REFET EFEINUATEREEN
BRBRM2HE (I TMEREERLE
BRERBHARERZE - BBRNER
Fir 2 W T EZ20% °

Defermined by the directors, but may not
be less than the higher of {i] the nominal
value of fully paid shares; and (ii] a price
not more than 20% below the average
closing price of the ordinary shares on the
Stock Exchange of the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant of
options.

FER-ZZEE_FNATN\BRILL
BEFEZEXHEFEY  BE-T——
F=HAH-

The scheme has been terminated on 28
August 2002, but the provisions of the
scheme shall remain in force until 5 March

2011.

RMEFBERNEFRARA - EREME
AT TERREBEEERRTER  EX
ABRAR L 2 RXPTFRR -

Determined and notified by the directors to
each grantee, but shall end in any event not
later than ten years from the date of the grant of
options subject to the provisions for early
fermination thereof.

MEFETRINAEAZNEMS -
To be defermined by the directors and included
in the relevant offer letters.

/ﬂﬁ}i_o
Nil.

HESET  BUARUTESENRNDZ
HiE : (IRNBFROBRES B - EBA
AmRABEBRZBTE  RilFxR
HERERSAERZE  BERNER
P H MK |R 2 FHRHE -

Determined by the directors but must be the
highest of (i) the nominal value of shares; (ii] the
closing price of the ordinary shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheet on
the date of offer of grant of options, which must
be a business day; and [iii) the average closing
price of the ordinary shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant of options.

HESERER  BEEZT——FN\AZtt
H o
The scheme remains in force until 27 August

2012.
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33. BiRRESTE (&) 33. SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (Cont'd)
BRELERTHAARRKEET Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote
FRBRAG LRE - at shareholders’ meetings.

(a) Eatd (a) Old Scheme
AEERBEAEHARITELE The following share options were outstanding under the Old
PR Scheme during the year:
NERE
i
LN
REBEET BRE B

AR Priceofthe

( .
Numberof shore opfions U

RIZRCE KER RER KER RER RIZEE pice  shoresat
mA-A B EfifE BAH B =ZA=t-8 ofshoe gronicole
SEENLSES) A Graried Beercised lopsed ~ Concelled A RoERERE  BREARER  opon™  olopions™*
Nare orcalegory 1 Apil during durng during dong ~ 3IMorch  Doeofgontol  rerise priod BT oo
of paricipart 2002 the year fheyear the year theyear 2003 shareopfons® ~ of e opfions HK§ HKS
KhHzES
Directors ofthe Company
ERERL 3,000,000 = = = - 3000000 2-£ S 0.200 0.234
M Francis CHEUNG =R=t-H mA-BZ
21 March 2001 _EENE
=R=t1-H
1 Apil 2002 0
31 March 2004
BRRLE 3,000,000 = = = - 3000000 3£ S 0.200 0.234
Mr. FUNG Chi Chak, Victor =f-t+-A mR-RZ
21 March 2001 “EIME
=A=1-8
1 Apil 2002 0
31 March 2004
EABLE 1,500,000 = = = - 150000 3£ S 0.200 0.234
M Dovid CHEN =R=t-H mA-BZ
21 March 2001 -“TENE
=A=1-8
1 Apil 2002 0
31 Mharch 2004
FaZ 4 1,500,000 = = = - 150000 2-£ S 0.200 0234
MissJennier KWOK =R=1-H BA-RZ
21 March 2001 )1
=A=1-8
Al 2000
31 harch 2004
2hES
Other employees
it 6,600,000 = = = — 6600000 JERE %% 000 0234
I aggregole =R=t-H mA-BZ
21 March 2001 “EINE
ZA=+-A
1 Apil 2002 0
31 March 2004
15,600,000 = = = — 15600000
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33. BRMERTE (&) 33. SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (Cont'd)
(a) E&td (&) (a) Old Scheme (Cont'd)

* BREZEBHARLA SR *  The vesting period of the share opfions is from the date of the grant
AEETEBRRRL - until the commencement of the exercise period.

* BREZTEERHKRIAR **  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the
BATHE AR AR 2 H b 50U case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
BE)m T AR Company's share capital.

= REHEREHSARE 2K *** The price of the Company's shares disclosed as af the date of the
RERHERREERLER grant of the share options is the Stock Exchange closing price on the
BEHA R BEBRRMZ frading day immediately prior fo the date of the grant of the options.
Y &

(b) #rat| (b) New Scheme
REZREHFEHARITE B The following share options were outstanding under the New
Mg Scheme during the year:
NERE
el
ARk
s R

AR Priceofthe

Number of share opfions bece  Congoys

e 15R 1ER 15R TEE HoFEZE pie shoesal
mA-A B Efife BAK BdE =ZRA=1-R oo gronicole
SEENLIES) A Gronied Beercised loped ~ Concelled A RoERERS  BREARER  opon™  olopion'*
Nare orcalegory 1 Apil during durng during dong ~ 3IMorch  Doeofgontol  Brerise period AT £
of paricipart 2002 the year fhe year the year fheyear 2003 shoreopfons® ~ ofhore opfions HKS HS
KhHzES
Directrs ofthe Company
ERERE — 25,000,000 = = — 25,000,000 i C53cF 0.150 0.142
M. FUNG Chiu Chak, Victor =A=A -A=R%
3 horch 2003 ZEERE
=A=1-A
3March 2003 10
31 March 2006
e — 15,000,000 = = — 15,000,000 CEECE 23%= 0.150 0.142
Miss Jennier KWOK =A=H ZA=HZ
3 March 2003 E5E
ZR=1-H
3March 2003 1o
31 harch 2006
EhEs
Other employees
) — 13,000,000 = = — 13,000,000 CEECE 223 0.150 0.142
haggregole =R=H =R=R%
3orch 2003 JEERE
ZR=1-H
3 March 200310
31 March 2006
— 53,000,000 = = — 53,000,000

[ ]
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33. BRESE (&)

(b) #at& (&)

34. %

*

* %

FRAEARABRLBREEH
E_ZEENF=A=+—H (&
EEB)AITERE0% 2 ER
BEhE-E aZTT0EF
mMA—HAZ-_TETRFE=F=
+T—H(REER)HMH 84
AEATEZERESS L
BINE60% MA_TTHEF
MA—HZ-_ZEZ F=A=
+—HHERABEZE100% °

BB BB 2 17 12 08 % 41 IR o 4T
BT 2 B R 2 2B
BB T B -

REHBRERSBAEE 2K
ARBRNERAERREER
EAMAAEZERA  EBR
REZ TR BR A2 FHR
miE -

(a) EH

RERRAEEEAEBEER
BREEDRIHRE G A B
DEELTR

BREFHNEGELEZBBEDR
Bl - AN B B 2 B
DR Z@EME D B ERRE £
IRERR
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33. SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (Cont'd)

(b) New Scheme (Cont'd)

*

* %

* Kk Kk

Each grantee is allowed to exercise up to 30% of the share options
granted from the date of grant up to and including 31 March 2004.
Thereafter, the percentage of the share options which may be
exercised by each grantee is increased to 60% for the period from 1
April 2004 up to and including 31 March 2005, and further to
100% for the period from 1 April 2005 up to and including 31
March 2006.

The exercise price of the share options is subject fo adjusiment in the
case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
Company’s share capital.

The price of the Company’s shares disclosed as at the date of the
grant of the share options is the average closing price of the ordinary
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’ daily quotation sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant of
opfions.

34. RESERVES

(a) Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for

the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity of the financial statements.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for Sinoforeign joint

venture enterprises, a portion of the profits of the Group's

subsidiaries which are registered in the PRC has been transferred to

statutory reserves which are restricted as fo use.

°
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34. ikt (&) 34. RESERVES (Cont'd)
(b) 2 7] (b) Company
f% 13 % B BR
Share BABER RE R
premium  Contributed Retained st
account surplus profits Total
ftiE TET FET TET FET
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R_ZTE—F
mA—A At 1 April 2001 508,577 29,950 49,226 587,753
AEZHA Net profit for the year — — 5,196 5,196
ZETCF
R R Interim 2002 dividend 12 = = (2,927) (2,927)
—TT_F Proposed final
Bk R HARR B 2002 dividend 12 = = (2,927 (2,927)
RZTTZF
=A=1T—H At 31 March 2002 and
REA beginning of year 508,577 29,950 48,568 587,095
AEFFEE  Netloss for the year — — (1,386) (1,386)
R-ZE=
=A=+—H At31 March 2003 508,577 29,950 47,182 585,709
ARRBABBEREDARG £ The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the fair
Al BRER - AN F2&EBEAM value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
BAZIBLRAKRNATE BR#Z reorganisation in 1991 prior fo the listing of the Company’s shares, over
ARRIBBETROCEEZHE - R the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor.
BEREE— LN\ —FRa% (&E Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
i) BAETERT  RARAEHA Company may make distributions to its members out of the contributed
BAFDIRTRE surplus under certain circumstances.

[ ]
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35. MEREREBRMT 35. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

EFAZ

BN KM T2 - AFER
MetEBERF 165 (KEFT) » 5l
ﬁﬁw—\fﬁi/mizj%ZT%TE&“ o FRA
BeRngXRANRBE=-EFEZ7
RERXE REXBRBMERBK 2R
EmB - ZABKALERE B
FR=ERE  ERKRELHREBME
EARENBIBEZRERE - EXE
FOESBEINBERENHIBRE
FALLEB2RLRE - MAKR
MERBEREHFAREEB RS
nE ENRERFEREHARE
(B cHeRE BHEZTT-F=
H:‘I’—EIJJ:EEZ—H#H:RZ?/:}EE
SREBREJNESREMEA NS

BE HNMBERRMAINRERE
RRSER|IMER  KIETSHER
HRAFE 1R [ERREBER] 2 ER M
AgEBENE IR ZERETR
LEARBEFRETBIAZARE
ER RIET-_F=A=+—HE&K

EHReNEXRZERAREERSER
EHE  RZAREZRBAZGET
Wik E7042,912,0005 7T © (5 HUEE
FERNEHRERFAREXK 2R
ERE MAEEBRIBAERERD
MR -
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Prior year adjustment

SSAP 15 (Revised) was adopted during the current year, as detailed in
note 2 to the financial statements, which has resulted in a change fo the
layout of the consolidated cash flow statement. The consolidated cash
flow statement is now presented under three headings: cash flows from
operating activities, investing activities and financing activities.
Previously, five headings were used, comprising the three headings listed
above, fogether with cash flows from returns on investments and servicing
of finance and from taxes paid. The significant reclassifications resulting
from the change in presentation are that taxes paid are now included in
cash flows from operating activities, inferest and dividends received are
now included in cash flows from investing activities and dividends and
interest paid are now included in cash flows from financing activities. The
presentation of the comparative consolidated cash flow statement for the
year ended 31 March 2002 has been changed fo accord with the new
layout.

Also, the definition of “cash equivalents” under the revised SSAP 15 has
been revised from that under the previous SSAP 15, as explained under
the heading “Cash and cash equivalents” in note 3 to the financial
statements. This has resulted in frust receipt loans no longer qualifying as
cash equivalents. The amount of cash equivalents in the consolidated
cash flow statement at 31 March 2002 has been adjusted to remove
frust receipt loans amounting to HK$42,912,000, previously included at
that date. The year's movement in trust receipt loans is now included in
cash flows from financing activities and the comparative cash flow
statfement has been changed accordingly.

°
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31 March 2003 ZZE=F=HA=1-H

36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

(b)

As lessor

The Group leases ifs investment properties (note 15 to the financial
statements) and certain machinery under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for ferms ranging from one to
five years. The terms of the leases generally also require the fenants
fo pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according fo the then prevailing market conditions.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under noncancellable operating leases with its
tenants falling due as follows:

£8
GROUP

—2T=fF CTT=HF

2003 2002

FET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

Within one year 58,612 59,161
In the second fo fifth years,

inclusive 17,627 20,854

After five years 386 —

76,625 80,015

As lessee

The Group leases cerfain of its office properties and warehouses
under operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for
ferms ranging from one to four years.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had tofal future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due
as follows:

£E
GROUP

—EEB=F —ETTC-F

2003 2002

FETT FEL

HK$’000 HK$'000

Within one year 5,956 6,435
In the second fo fifth years,

inclusive 6,568 12,524

12,524 18,959

The Company did not have any operating lease arrangements af the

balance sheet date (2002: Nil).
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37. EiIE
Br b ST 5E36(h) 5 4l 2 £ & 70 4 R
SN REEH REBHRERPYE

38.

88

R EEEERNTBEHRERAMELERE
ZERAERREARIMT

BRI AERIEHERE

REER  ARAGEEMER&SE
(ZFF=F:§) -

(@) R&EER ARPBHERAEL
BEZHRABMOT

__'__lg

37. COMMITMENTS

38.

In addition fo
above, the Group had the following authorised future capital expenditure

the operating lease commitments detailed in note 36(b)

for properties under development and fixed assets which had not been
provided for in the financial statements at the balance sheet date:

58
GROUP
—EER=F —TTF
2003 2002
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
Confracted, but not provided for 115,016 128,938

The Company had no significant commitments atf the balance sheet date
(2002: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)  Atthe balance sheet date, contingent liabilities not provided for in
the financial statements were as follows:

£H YN
GROUP COMPANY
—BE=F C—FTT-HF C-TE=F TT-F
2003 2002 2003 2002
FET TET FET F# T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT TS AR ) Guarantees given fo financial
i 2 A1 4L insfitutions in connection with
Z—REFR general credit facilities and
MEMEOER finance lease facilities granfed
Més T 2 IR fo subsidiaries = = 517,151 427,730
HEORES Guarantees in respect of
mEH 2 R performance bonds 156,015 195,250 156,015 195,250
156,015 195,250 673,166 622,980

Annual Report 2002/2003
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38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

(b)

The Group had a contingent liability in respect of possible future
long service payments to its employees under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance, with a maximum possible amount of
HK$6,816,000 as at 31 March 2003 (2002: HK$8,355,000),
as further explained under the heading “Employee benefits” in nofe
3 to the financial statements. The contingent liability has arisen
because, at the balance sheet date, a number of current employees
have achieved the required number of years of service to the Group
in order to be eligible for long service payments under the
Employment Ordinance if their employment is terminated under
certain circumstances. A provision has not been recognised in
respect of such possible payments, as it is not considered probable
that the situation will result in a material future outflow of resources
from the Group.

39. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

40.

As further explained in note 2 to the financial statements, due to the

adoption of certain new and revised SSAPs during the current year, the

accounting freatment and presentation of cerfain ifems and balances in

the financial statements have been revised to comply with the new

requirements. Accordingly, certain prior year adjustments have been

made and cerfain comparative amounts have been reclassified and

revised to conform with the current year's presentation.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the

board of directors on 8 July 2003.

2002/2003 &k @



